
 CITY OF RICHARDSON 
CITY PLAN COMMISSION MINUTES – FEBRUARY 3, 2015 

 
The Richardson City Plan Commission met on February 3, 2015, at 7:00 p.m. at City Hall in the 
Council Chambers, 411 W. Arapaho Road, Richardson, Texas. 

 
MEMBERS PRESENT: Barry Hand, Chairman 
  Gerald Bright, Vice Chair 
  Janet DePuy, Commissioner 
  Marilyn Frederick, Commissioner 
  Eron Linn, Commissioner 
  Thomas Maxwell, Commissioner 
  Randy Roland, Commissioner 
  Bill Ferrell, Alternate 
  Stephen Springs, Alternate 
   
CITY STAFF PRESENT: Sam Chavez, Assistant Director – Dev. Svcs – Planning  
  Israel Roberts, Development Manager 
  Chris Shacklett, Senior Planner 
  Kathy Welp, Executive Secretary 
 
BRIEFING SESSION 
 
Prior to the start of the regular business meeting, the City Plan Commission met with staff regarding 
staff reports, agenda items and a training session with the City Attorney.  No action was taken. 
 
MINUTES 
 
1. Approval of the minutes of the regular business meeting of January 20, 2015. 

 
Motion: Commissioner DePuy made a motion to approve the minutes as presented; second by 

Vice Chair Bright.  Motion passed 7-0. 
 
VARIANCES 
 
2. Variance 15-01 – Black Flag:  Consider and take necessary action on a request for a variance to 

Chapter 21 of the Subdivision and Development Code, Article III, Section 21-52(i) Off-Street 
Parking, for a reduction in the number of required parking spaces. The 14.93-acre site is located at 
1402 E. Lookout Drive, southeast corner of Plano Road and Lookout Drive.   

 
Mr. Roberts stated he would present both Variances 15-01 and 15-02 together, but the Commission 
would have to vote on each item separately.   
 
Mr. Roberts noted that Variance 15-01 was a request for reduction in parking for a data center from 
one parking space for every one-thousand square feet (1:1,000) to one parking space for every five-
thousand square feet (1:5,000).  He also presented historical information from the developer’s other 
projects in support of the request.  
 

Ds:CPC/2015/2015-02-03 Minutes.doc  1 



Richardson City Plan Commission Minutes 
February 3, 2015 
 
 

Regarding Variance 15-02, Mr. Robert reported the applicant was requesting a reduction in length 
of the required screening wall along the southern property line based on written refusal from 
Atmos Energy to allow any structure to be built in their easement.  However, there were two letters 
in support of the reduced length; one from the local homeowners association, and one from the 
most adjacent homeowner.   
 
No questions were asked of staff and Chairman Hand called for a motion. 
 
Motion: Vice Chair Bright made a motion to recommend approval of Variance 15-01 as 

presented; second by Commissioner Roland.  Motion passed 7-0. 
 

3. Variance 15-02 – Black Flag:  Consider and take necessary action on a request for a variance to 
Chapter 21 of the Subdivision and Development Code, Article III, Section 21-47(d), Screening and 
Open Space, to eliminate a portion of a required screening wall.  The 14.93-acre site is located at 
1402 E. Lookout Drive, southeast corner of Plano Road and Lookout Drive.   

 
As noted above, staff made the presentation for both Variances 15-01 and 15-02 at the same time 
and with no questions for staff; Chairman Hand called for a motion on Variance 15-02. 
 
Motion: Commissioner Frederick made a motion to recommend approval of Variance 15-02 as 

presented; second by Commissioner Maxwell.  Motion approved 7-0. 
 

PUBLIC HEARING 
 

4. Zoning File 14-43 – Office Building:  Consider and take necessary action on a request for a 
change in zoning from O-M Office with special conditions to PD Planned Development to 
accommodate an office building remodel and to modify site development standards on property 
located at the southwest corner of Arapaho Road and Newberry Drive. 
 
Mr. Shacklett advised the applicant was requesting to rezone the property to accommodate the 
remodel of an existing office building taking a four-suite building and converting it to a two-suite 
building to market to medical tenants.  In addition, the applicant was requesting to construct a 
parking lot on the Newberry Drive side of the property. 
 
Mr. Shacklett noted that some remodeling had already taken place and was allowed under the 
current zoning, however, construction had stopped on changes to the elevation and removing some 
of masonry until a zoning change could be presented to the Commission. 
 
Mr. Shacklett reviewed the history of building outlining some of the non-conformities of the site 
including spacing of the northern driveway from the corner of Arapaho Road; building setbacks; 
and landscape buffers.  He indicated the applicant had already built a 6-foot fence on the south side 
of the building to screen the mechanical equipment and was requesting a reduced landscape buffer 
along Newberry Drive to coincide with the requested parking lot and driveway at the southeast 
corner of the property. 
 

 Ds:CPC/2015/2015-02-03 Minutes.doc  2 



Richardson City Plan Commission Minutes 
February 3, 2015 
 
 

Mr. Shacklett concluded his presentation by noting the site was too small to have a dumpster and 
the City’s sanitation department has been servicing the building similar to residential properties.  In 
addition, the applicant was requesting to forego a masonry screening wall along the alley adjacent 
to the residential area and instead plant native grasses on that side of the property.  
 
Chairman Hand asked how the applicant was allowed to make some of the changes already 
completed on the site. 
 
Mr. Shacklett replied he had met with the applicant in August 2014 to discuss some issues 
including parking, but there was a miscommunication about what changes could be made.  Once 
the applicant was advised that a zoning change would be needed, they stopped all work on the 
exterior of the building until the request could go through the proper channels. 
 
Commissioner DePuy asked staff to explain comments from the staff report regarding the northern 
most parking space off Newberry Drive. 
 
Mr. Shacklett replied that staff was concerned the parking space extended further east than the 
adjacent island and could cause a problem for someone turning into the drive aisle.  The applicant 
was asked to extend the island; however, he was concerned that if the island was extended the 
parking space would be lost.  He added that the applicant was requesting a variance in the special 
conditions so the island could remain “as shown”. 
 
Commissioner Linn said he had concerns with medical waste if a future tenant was a medical office 
especially if the trash was being picked up similar to residential services.  He asked if there was 
anywhere on the site where a dumpster could be located. 
 
Mr. Shacklett replied the only possible area would be at the southwest corner, but the sanitation 
truck would have a very difficult time backing up in the limited space available.  He reiterated that 
the site had been serviced by City sanitation similar to residential customer and the Sanitation 
Department did not have a concern with continuing the same service. 
 
Commissioner Frederick asked if the applicant would be repaving the current parking lot. 
 
Mr. Shacklett said the current parking lot was asphalt and the applicant would do an asphalt 
overlay if it meets the City’s codes and standards.  He added that the proposed parking on the east 
side would be concrete. 
 
The Commission had no other questions for staff and Chairman Hand opened the public hearing. 
 
Mr. Robert Norris, 602 Asher Court, Arlington, Texas, owner of the property, stated he was willing 
to build a small box in the back of the business to hold the trash until it was picked up. 
 
Commissioner Springs asked if the existing pipe rail on the northern parking lot was going to 
remain. 
 

 Ds:CPC/2015/2015-02-03 Minutes.doc  3 



Richardson City Plan Commission Minutes 
February 3, 2015 
 
 

Mr. Norris said the rail would remain, but it would be painted after the parking lot was overlaid. 
 
No other comments were received in favor or opposed and Chairman Hand closed the public 
hearing. 
 
Commissioner Linn asked staff how the receptacle mentioned by the applicant could be 
incorporated into the application. 
 
Mr. Shacklett replied a special condition could be added to the motion. 
 
Chairman Hand suggested adding language to an existing special condition, number eleven (11), 
stating “…however, a wooden trash enclosure shall be constructed within the landscape area 
along the west property line.” 
 
Commissioner DePuy asked if the Sanitation Department did not approve a location and the 
verbiage was made part of the special conditions, what the impact would be on the application. 
 
Mr. Shacklett said he did not think a small enclosure or box would be an issue for the Sanitation 
Department. 
 
Motion: Commissioner DePuy made a motion to recommend approval of Zoning File 14-43 as 

presented with the added condition of constructing a wooden trash enclosure along the 
west property line; second by Commissioner Linn.  Motion approved 7-0. 

 
ADJOURN 
 
With no further business before the Commission, Chairman Hand adjourned the regular business 
meeting at 7:57 p.m. 
 
 
 
____________________ 
Gerald Bright, Vice Chairman 
City Plan Commission 

 Ds:CPC/2015/2015-02-03 Minutes.doc  4 


